
 

Common Council – April 3, 2012  Page 1 of 9 

City of Cortland 

                  

City Council Minutes 

The City of Cortland 
April 3, 2012 

 
Council Meeting #7 
April 3, 2012  
Regular Session 
City Hall 
7:00 PM 
 
Present: Mayor Tobin, Aldermen Bird, Silliman, Dye, Bennett, Ferrer, Ferguson 

and Michales 
 
Staff Present: Director of Administration and Finance Mack Cook, Corporation 

Counsel Kelly Colasurdo and City Clerk Judith Chamberlin  
 
Mayor Tobin called the seventh Common Council meeting of the year to order at 7:05 P.M.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Public Comment 
 
Rose Ann Coville spoke about Thoma’s previous Loan Subordination and thanked the 
Council for their assistance in the past and asked for their support on an increase in her 
loan amount to accomplish some much needed repairs for her garage. 
 
Tom Gobel spoke about the Jones Building on Main Street.  He had heard eminent domain 
proceedings were taking place on the building and if that were true, was there an open bid 
process to restore the building. 
 
Mayor Tobin stated that the City was not in the process of eminent domain for that building 
and there were no current plans to do so. 
 
Mike Dexter spoke about the planting of trees in the City.  He noted that there were sixty 
(60) free trees available and so far there has not been a great demand for these trees.  He 
thanked Diane Batzing for her grant work.  He stated that the grant deadline for requesting 
the trees is April 13, 2012.  He noted that the City has been recognized for the fifth (5th) 
straight year as a Tree City USA and read a letter from the Arbor Day Foundation which 
congratulated Cortland for this recognition.  He noted that a tree will be planted on April 27, 
possibly on Church Street, to honor Arbor Day. 
 
Mayor Tobin noted that the trees are free and will be planted by the City.  The only 
responsibility the property owner has is to regularly water the tree. 
 
RESOLUTION #65 OF 2012 - Minutes of March 20, 2012 as amended 



 

Common Council – April 3, 2012  Page 2 of 9 

City of Cortland 

 
By:    Alderman Bird 
Seconded:   Alderman Bennett 
 
Approved:   Ayes – 7 
    Nays - 0 
 
Bills were reviewed. 
 
Ward Reports 
 
Ward 4 – Alderman Bennett 
 
Alderman Bennett reminded everyone that with the nice weather and everyone outside 
biking and walking, that drivers slow down on Tompkins Street and obey the speed limit.  
He wished everyone a Happy Easter. 
 
Ward 8 – Alderman Michales 
 
Alderman Michales stated that the Redistricting Committee will be meeting within the next 
week.  He explained that the Committee’s intentions were to keep the same number of 
Wards within the City.  He reported that he met with our Congressman this week for about 
an hour and there are some interesting things in the works. 
 
Ward 1 – Alderman Bird 
 
Alderman Bird reported that on Saturday, March 31, she had the opportunity to attend the 
12th Annual Easter Egg Hunt sponsored by the Youth Bureau, the YMCA and CAPCO at 
Beaudry Park.  She noted that over three hundred (300) excited children were lined up to 
search for the many eggs and to enjoy the face painting and other activities and music.  
Alderman Bird spoke with John McNerney and he wished to thank the thirty (30) SUNY 
Cortland student volunteers who helped with the Egg Hunt.  She noted that it was a good 
time had by all.  Alderman Bird noted that on Saturday, April 7, the twenty-third Annual Phil 
Clarke Musicians’ Benefit will be held at the Blue Frog at 7:00 PM and a donation will be 
taken at the door.  She gave information regarding the program. 
 
Ward 3 – Alderman Dye 
 
Alderman Dye reported that after the last Council meeting he received calls from residents 
on Atkins and Elwood regarding the gas main that was put in and asking if the company 
that did the work was returning to redo the lawns.  Alderman Dye also received some calls 
regarding trees and he gave them information on how to apply for the trees.  He also 
thanked everyone for the well wishes expressed while his wife was in the hospital and 
reported that she is home and doing well. 
 
Ward 2 – Alderman Silliman 
 



 

Common Council – April 3, 2012  Page 3 of 9 

City of Cortland 

Alderman Silliman received a call regarding removal of a tree.  She contacted Mr. Dexter 
and he will report back to her.  She hoped that another tree will be planted in its place if 
that tree is removed.  She reported that Aldermen Michales, Ferguson and herself, who 
serve on the Housing Committee, will be meeting this Thursday with Mack Cook to 
establish priorities and that the Committee will meet the following week. 
 
Ward 7 – Alderman Ferguson 
 
Alderman Ferguson noted that her Ward had had more than their share of complaints in 
the past month and she thanked the City service departments for their prompt response in 
correcting these.  She thanked the DPW, the Code Office, the Police and Mack Cook.  She 
also thanked the Youth Bureau for the signage repairs done at Dexter Park. 
 
Ward 6 – Alderman Ferrer 
 
Alderman Ferrer reported on the shared Ward meeting.  He thanked the DPW and Public 
Safety for their rapid response to a sign issue. 
 
Mayor’s Report 
 
Mayor Tobin reported that he met this morning with Thoma Development, Homer Mayor 
Suits and Cortlandville Town Supervisor Tupper about the development of the Route 11 
corridor from Homer through the City to Cortlandville.  They were looking at their different 
Comprehensive Plans to form a committee to start working on that development.  He is 
looking for some representatives from the Council to serve on that committee. 
 
He reported that the Council has begun work within their committees including Image, 
Housing and Strategic Planning and they are starting work on some of our high priorities.  
Alderman Ferguson reported on Saturday’s Image Committee meeting and the issues they 
will be addressing to beautify Cortland. 
 
Mayor Tobin reported on the State of the City address and he outlined his three (3) main 
priorities.  He explained that he is working on Main Street and the housing stock and the 
third priority will be working on youth development despite the budget crunch.  He wants to 
provide strong, viable options for the City’s youth.   
 
He reported that he met with the downtown business owners this past Tuesday to listen to 
their concerns.  He noted that there was a strong turnout of forty (40) to fifty (50) business 
owners and others who came in to discuss their concerns.  He noted that some of the main 
topics were snow removal in the winter, trash removal, parking, overall attractiveness and 
occupancy for second and third stories.  They came up with some ideas and are 
proceeding on them and will continue to have discussions to put together further 
suggestions. 
 
Mayor Tobin spoke about the tree program noting that it was a great opportunity to 
beautify properties.  He reported that there will be a discussion regarding a proposal to be 
presented at the next Council meeting for the potential hiring of a paralegal for the Law 



 

Common Council – April 3, 2012  Page 4 of 9 

City of Cortland 

Department.  He explained the research that has been done on this already and that the 
information will be presented regarding that. 
 
PINK SHEET Sign Off 
 
AGENDA: 
 
RESOLUTION #66 of 2012 – Resolution to approve an exotic pet permit to Donald Greene 
for a Macaw in place of a Quaker Parrot at 73 Central Avenue.  (Alderman Michales) 
 
Alderman Michales reported that he did a home visit and that it is being well cared for.  He 
recommended that the permit be issued. 
 
Alderman Silliman asked if the owner was present, expressing concern for the neighbors 
regarding noise.  Alderman Michales indicated that the bird was very quiet during his visit. 
 
By:     Alderman Silliman 
Seconded:    Alderman Ferrer 
 
Approved:    Ayes – 7 
     Nays – 0 
 
RESOLUTION #67 OF 2012 – Resolution to approve a sound device permit for the March 
for Jesus on May 19, 2012. (Main Street and Court House Park). (Breck Aspinwauld) 
 
Alderman Silliman asked about the location of the sound device.  Mayor Tobin reported 
that it is an annual event and that last year the device was fixed.  Alderman Michales 
asked for information regarding the park.  Chief Catalano reported that last year was the 
first time for this event.  He explained that he had not seen the parade route for this year, 
but did not have concerns.  Alderman Michales questioned that it was a six (6) hour event.  
Mayor Tobin noted that it was a side walk march from Main Street to the Court House Park 
and the majority of the event would take place in the park and there was no request for a 
street closure.   
 
Alderman Michales asked for clarification on permits issued in 2011 for church events.  
Chief Catalano reported that last year there was a Hip Hop Fest in the park and it was very 
loud, but that was not this event.  Alderman Michales noted his support if that was the 
case.   
 
By:     Alderman Ferrer 
Seconded:    Alderman Silliman 
 
Approved:    Ayes – 7 
     Nays – 0 
 
RESOLUTION #68 OF 2012 – Resolution to authorize the Cortland Professional Fire 
Fighters Association (CPFFA) to hold the “Fill the Boot” campaign for the Muscular 



 

Common Council – April 3, 2012  Page 5 of 9 

City of Cortland 

Dystrophy Association on Saturday, May 12, 2012, at the corner of Tompkins Street and 
Broadway. (Derek Reynolds) 
 
Mayor Tobin reported on a meeting with Derek Reynolds and the Regional Director of the 
MDA explaining that this was an annual event which takes place on the weekend of the 
SUNY Cortland graduation.  He noted that this was discussed at the Department Heads 
meeting where the chief concern was to keep traffic moving on that day.  Alderman 
Silliman supported this program.  Aldermen Michales and Ferrer explained that this has 
been done for a number of years and has gone well.   
 
By:     Alderman Ferrer 
Seconded:    Alderman Michales 
 
Approved:    Ayes – 7 
     Nays – 0 
 
RESOLUTION #69 OF 2012 – Resolution approving the request from St. Anthony’s to 
close a portion of Pomeroy Street from Central Avenue on the South end to Elm Street on 
the North end to through traffic for the annual St. Anthony’s Festival celebration on 
Sunday, June 17, 2012 from 6:00 A.M. to 9:00 P.M. and to approve the sound permit.  
(Carl Fadale) 
 
Alderman Silliman noted that this is a long standing annual event and that Chief Catalano 
expressed that there were no issues or complaints. 
 
By:     Alderman Ferrer 
Seconded:    Alderman Bird 
 
Approved:    Ayes – 7 
     Nays – 0 
 
RESOLUTION #70 OF 2012 – Resolution authorizing the Mayor to enter into a contract 
with Terri Trevits to operate the Yaman Park Concession Stand from May 26, 2012 to 
September 4, 2012 subject to review of Corporation Counsel.  (John McNerney) 
 
Alderman Ferrer asked if Corporation Counsel had the opportunity to review the contract.  
Alderman Silliman asked what the applicant’s experience was.  Mayor Tobin explained that 
this is a new applicant and that John McNerney was enthusiastic about having these 
people run the concession.  Alderman Silliman noted that the rental fee was low and that 
this seemed like a good opportunity for the applicant.  Alderman Michales asked about 
item #6 on page 4 of the contract regarding structural alterations and asked if there were 
going to be any structural changes.  It was reported that there would not be any changes. 
 
By:     Alderman Dye 
Seconded:    Alderman Ferrer 
 
Approved:    Ayes – 7 
     Nays - 0 



 

Common Council – April 3, 2012  Page 6 of 9 

City of Cortland 

 
 
RESOLUTION #71 OF 2012 – Resolution authorizing the waiving of the permit fee and 
allowing local registered not-for-profit entities to vend at the City’s Dairy Parade if all 
application criteria are met and permits are obtained from the City Clerk’s Office. (Mayor 
Tobin) 
 
Alderman Dye noted that this began two (2) years ago.  Mayor Tobin noted that there was 
an organization that had already inquired about vending this year.  He noted that candy 
cigarettes are banned from sale at the Dairy Parade.  Alderman Bird asked if for-profit 
vendors had to pay permit fees.  Mayor Tobin stated that this waiver was just for the not-
for-profits. 
 
By:     Alderman Ferrer 
Seconded:    Alderman Bird 
 
Approved:    Ayes – 7 
     Nays – 0 
 
RESOLUTION #72 OF 2012 – Resolution by which the City of Cortland adopts an addition 
to its New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System standard work day listing:  
(Mack Cook) 
 
     Mayor – Six (6) hours 
 
Mayor Tobin noted that this is housekeeping and was similar to what had been done in the 
past for Council members and Corporation Counsel. 
 
Alderman Dye asked if this was for alderpersons who are already in the retirement system.  
Mack Cook explained that a standard work day had not been established for the position of 
Mayor and subsequently placed on the list. 
 
By:     Alderman Ferrer 
Seconded:    Alderman Bird 
 
Approved:    Ayes – 7 
     Nays – 0 
 
RESOLUTION #73 OF 2012 – Resolution to approve the attached item of the Mayor’s 
appointments to fill vacancies on the City Boards and Commissions for the term indicated.  
(Mayor Tobin) 
 
Mayor Tobin explained that these appointments were for the Cortland Housing Authority 
Board.  Alderman Ferguson asked if these were reappointments.  Mayor Tobin explained 
that their terms were expiring and that she was correct in saying that they were 
reappointees. 
 
By:     Alderman Silliman 



 

Common Council – April 3, 2012  Page 7 of 9 

City of Cortland 

Seconded:    Alderman Bennett 
 
Approved:    Ayes – 7 
     Nays – 0 
 
RESOLUTION #74 OF 2012 – Resolution to approve the Agreement between the City of 
Cortland and the Volunteer Companies of the Cortland Fire Department (Board of 
Engineers) and authorizes the Mayor to sign the contract upon review by Corporation 
Counsel.  (Chief Glover) 
 
Mayor Tobin explained that this provides liability coverage for the Volunteers.   Alderman 
Ferrer noted that it also pays for the insurance, clothing, etc., for retention of current 
members.  He explained that the companies get their portion based on responses as a 
group and the other portion goes to the Board of Engineers to cover activities and awards.  
Alderman Bennett asked about the length of the contract.  Alderman Ferrer explained that 
it was a one (1) year contract. 
 
Alderman Silliman asked if this was already budgeted for.  Alderman Bird asked if this was 
the same as last year.  Alderman Ferrer stated that it was.  Alderman Michales noted his 
involvement with the Service Award Committee in the past.   
 
Alderman Ferrer explained that the committee would be meeting soon.  He discussed the 
point system for service credits for retirement if certain criteria were met.  Alderman 
Silliman asked about the company names listed on the back of the contract.  Alderman 
Ferrer explained that they were the names of the five (5) current volunteer companies 
explaining that they were historical names, with the number of members per each 
company and the number of responses each company made in the past year.  Alderman 
Ferrer explained that the contract is renewed from January through December, but the 
gathering of the annual report numbers takes until March.  
 
Alderman Silliman asked how many people this involved.  Alderman Ferrer explained that 
there were about sixty (60) individuals between administration and active members. 
 
By:     Alderman Dye 
Seconded:    Alderman Ferguson 
 
Approved:    Ayes – 6 
     Nays – 0   
     Abstain – 1 (Ferrer) 
 
Item No. 10 – Discussion regarding the scheduling of a monthly Council work session on 
the second Council meeting date of each month.  (Mayor Tobin) 
 
Mayor Tobin explained that if the Council was able to limit the Mayor’s and Ward reports to 
monthly reports, they could get together in work sessions and work groups to discuss 
different topics.   
 



 

Common Council – April 3, 2012  Page 8 of 9 

City of Cortland 

Alderman Michales asked if these work sessions would take place before or after 
scheduled Council meetings.  Mayor Tobin noted that the general public expectation was 
that the Council meetings should continue to begin at 7:00 PM.  He also noted that starting 
work sessions prior to the Council meeting, might inconvenience some and work sessions 
following the Council meeting might be more appropriate.  Alderman Ferguson agreed 
noting concern for those who worked.   
 
Alderman Bennett expressed concern if there were an extremely long executive session.  
Mayor Tobin agreed and would like to try to schedule executive sessions at the first 
meeting of the month when possible.  Alderman Silliman noted that the lighter Council 
agenda mentioned by the Mayor earlier, would assist the Council on work session days. 
 
Alderman Dye noted that Mack Cook had explained that the second meeting of the month 
the Council could be brought up to date on an issue then discuss it and only emergency 
items would be voted on at that second meeting.  Alderman Dye supported that idea.  
Alderman Silliman liked the idea, but expressed a concern that the first meeting of the 
month would have a very large number of items on the agenda.  Alderman Bennett noted 
that this was something to consider in the future, where it could be put before the public to 
speak about this and maybe be here at 6:00 PM or 6:30 PM at the first meeting of the 
month.  He felt that more things had to be worked out in detail before it began. 
 
Alderman Silliman noted that tonight’s agenda had ten (10) items and was taking about an 
hour.  Alderman Bennett noted that come fall when the Council began work on the budget, 
the Council meetings got longer.  Mayor Tobin noted that the Council was already in the 
habit of scheduling those work sessions for the budget on the alternate Tuesdays.  He 
noted that by cutting back on the Mayor’s and Ward reports, as well as proclamations to 
once a month, they could cut back on the length of that part of the meeting by twenty (20) 
to twenty-five (25) minutes.  He felt that with the newly established committees that this 
would give the opportunity for guest speakers and allow further discussion and breaks up 
the formality of the regular meeting and involves more public input.  Mayor Tobin noted 
that he and the staff had taken great effort to supply as much information as possible in the 
packets regarding agenda items and if more could be done, to let him know because if 
there were thirty (30) or more agenda items, they could make a decision with few 
questions because questions would have been answered beforehand.  Alderman Michales 
noted that there was time left after this meeting. 
 
Alderman Ferguson noted that the work sessions could be rescheduled if a Council 
meeting did go long.  Alderman Silliman felt that it was worth a try.  Alderman Dye agreed 
to give it a try.   
 
Mayor Tobin asked if the Council had a topic of concern for the first work session, to let 
him know.  Alderman Dye stated that it be blue bags and trash collection and to email 
questions and concerns to the Mayor’s assistant, Steven Rhea, so that individuals who can 
answer questions and visitors can be invited to the work session. 
 
Alderman Silliman thanked the City of Cortland for the Council business cards and the 
tablets.  She noted that this would cut down on the cost of printing, mailing and 
warehousing.  Mayor Tobin asked Alderman Ferrer for his thoughts on the tablets.   



 

Common Council – April 3, 2012  Page 9 of 9 

City of Cortland 

 
Alderman Ferrer noted that he attended a NYCOM meeting last year where the significant 
savings to municipalities using tablets was outlined and he made the recommendation that 
this medium be looked into.  He noted that this was also a recommendation from the State 
Comptroller’s Office and that more and more municipalities are going this route to save 
money.  He felt that it was a good idea, but noted it was going to take some time to get 
used to.  He stated that he finds it simpler to work with.  
 
Alderman Silliman noted that this was not her personal tablet, but the City of Cortland’s 
tablet and the Council can’t put personal items or apps on it.  Alderman Ferrer agreed that 
it was a City owned item and must be returned to the City when each Alderman no longer 
held their position.  He noted that it would provide the incoming person with notes and 
information that they might not have been given in the past.  It was noted that not all 
alderpersons had received their tablets and some requested more training be made 
available. 
 
Mayor Tobin noted that there would be no mail delays once the process of using the 
tablets began and that tablet training would be arranged. There was continuing discussion 
regarding training.  Mayor Tobin thanked Mack Cook and Dave Stathis, the IT professional 
for all the work they did in putting this together. 
 
Alderman Michales asked if the Council should go into an Executive Session regarding the 
Coville request.  Alderman Ferguson thought it would be more helpful to have Linda 
Armstrong from Thoma Development present.  Mayor Tobin noted that this would be put 
forward until the next meeting for a potential Executive Session. 
 
Adjournment 
 
By:     Alderman Ferrer 
Seconded:    Alderman Silliman 
 
Approved:    Ayes – 7 
     Nays – 0 
 
I, JUDITH CHAMBERLIN, CITY CLERK OF THE CITY OF CORTLAND, NEW YORK DO 
HEREBY CERTIFY THAT SAID RESOLUTIONS WERE ADOPTED BY THE COMMON 
COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CORTLAND, HELD ON THE 3rd DAY OF APRIL 2012.  I FURTHER CERTIFY THE 
FOREGOING RESOLUTIONS WERE PRESENTED TO THE MAYOR IN THE TIME 
REQUIRED FOR HIS CONCURRENCE IN ADOPTION OR REJECTION BY VETO 
POWER. 
 
_________________________________  ____________________________ 
JUDITH CHAMBERLIN, CITY CLERK   MAYOR TOBIN 


